Questions and Answers for the CNB Emergency Management and Business Continuity Planning RFP
1. What is the funding mechanism for this scope of work?  Federal or Sate Grants or internally budgeted funding?  This is important due to our experience since if it is grant funded all of the deliverables will need to meet the requirements of the grant and will need to provide an audit record for the entire project. 

The funding will be internal, no grants to my knowledge. 
2. What is the assigned budget for this scope of work? 

We will not disclose a budget.  I have found that anytime a budget is provided, bids magically come back at the amount of the budget!  So, please sharpen your pencil, we will want your best deal. 

3. Can you provide the number of departments for each of the locations detailed in the RFP?  This can be at a high level. 

We have so many locations on our list, but many of them have small amounts of assets and/or personnel.  Much of the work for multiple locations will come from centralized locations, such as Catoosa or Tulsa.  At this time, I do not believe that I can provide you a specific answer.  Will this pose a problem in responding?  

4. Has a project manager been designated from the Cherokee Nations Business side?
Internally we recognize the need for one primary point of contact with the responsibility for this work.  At this time, I do not believe someone has been recognized or identified.   

1. Are you able to tell us if this project is grant funded or being funded locally by the tribe ?   Reasons we ask-  if it is grant funding, would we be required to provide any of the grant reports which will come due ?  And if it is grant related, are there any special guidelines (strings) attached for us to follow during the process ? 
This is not grant funded.

2. It is our understanding that you are looking to have all three phases of the project completed by the deadline – or is there a chance that Phase II or III might occur after the actual plan is turned in and priorities/decisions are made ?

CNE expects the awarded consultant to coordinate the plan with all federal, state, municipal and tribal officials for this activity. 
3. Would we have access (for research, questions, documents, etc) to both the county EM’s and the tribal EM’s ?

CNE expects the awarded consultant to coordinate the plan with all federal, state, municipal and tribal officials for this activity. 
4.  Is the budget an Open Public Record?

No, typically CNB does not disclose budgets.  My experience has proven that when budgets are disclosed, bids come in at the budget number
5. Are you able to share with us any sort of dollar amount for this project, or a  “range” ?   There are so many variables in the RFP, we are trying to get a good handle on exactly what is needed, how many trips, how many staff to dedicate to the project, etc.

No dollar amount, sorry.  You can list variables in your bid and provide price ranges and alternatives if you wish.
6. There is a section that referred to “Implementation, Conduct & Management of the Plan” in the 3 phases.   Can you provide any additional information such as; will the implementation of the plan occur in one location one day only, or will there be multiple locations?   Do we need to plan to conduct Exercises, and if so, would that be at one location or multiple locations

There is a list of locations throughout the 1 counties in the RFP.  Maybe that information did not make it you?  I recommend reviewing all of the documents again, as there is a list of locations.  Phase III is the ongoing management of the plan.  CNB sees Phase I as being the drafting of the plan, Phase II as being the implementation (training, equipment purchase, etc) and Phase III the ongoing management.  The successful bidder would only need to plan training, etc. if awarded Phase II and III.
7. Do you have a current Emergency Management Plan or Business Continuity Plan in place now, or would we be starting the process from scratch ?   If there is a current plan in either category, would this project be a “revision” of the Plan(s) or would you be asking us to start over with a new plan?

Cherokee Nation Businesses LLC is a parent company to about 27 other companies.  Some of these companies have been in existence for 45 years while others are just a few years old.  Some of our businesses may have plans or elements of a either or both emergency management / business continuity, but CNB does not have a comprehensive plan for all.  That is the deliverable with the RFP.  We would expect the consultant to identify what we have, what should be added/edited/created and lay the plan to do it.
8. If you do have a plan in place in either or both categories, do you have the plan(s) available in an electronic format ? 
Unsure about formalized plans, but if so, we would likely only provide to winning consultant.
9. It is our understanding that you desire one plan that encompasses all of the CN businesses in the Oklahoma boundaries – and not a separate plan of response or recovery for each business.   Please clarify that we are on the right track. 
This is correct, although breaking out by company might be applicable given geographic locations.
10. Can the contract be set up in a way so a monthly billing (invoice) can be sent which includes the work completed to date, or payments allowed by phases (especially if it is through a grant) ?

Yes, CNB is open to discuss various payment methods to include monthly billing
11. How many Black & White hard copies of the plan would need to be provided?     How many color copies of the plan would need to be provided ? 
I would appreciate up to 5, but will accept 3.  We need an electronic copy as well in case further copies will need to be made.  Color is up to you.
12. How many electronic copies of the plan would need to be provided? 
One.

1.  The RFP states the EM plan is to “Develop specific steps to avoid risk and resume operations in the aftermath of a catastrophic natural disaster or national emergency.” 
a. Does CNB have an existing EM plan for catastrophic events? 
CNB is an umbrella company with over 20 subsidiaries.  Some of these subs are over 40 years old and others are simply companies on paper with limited assets or human resources.  I think you will find a mix in regards to plans, but there is not one comprehensive plan for all of CNB and that is why we have this RFP.
b. Does CNB have any existing related SOPs?
Same as above.

c. Does CNB have an existing EM plan for emergency events that are not catastrophic in nature?

Same as above.

d. If not, should those events be included in the EM plan? 

Yes, a bidder should bid on identifying any existing plans and combining those plans with what needs to be done is what CNB is looking for as a deliverable. 
2. The RFP states the Business Continuity Plan is to “Develop specific steps to ensure that critical CNB business functions will be available to customers, suppliers, regulators and other entities that must have access to those functions during a disaster recovery period. ”
a. Has CNB identified critical business functions or will contractor do this in conjunction with CNB managers?
No, this is needed from the consultant we hire. 
3. Under the Deliverables section of the RFP it states, “Implementation and Management of such plan, if awarded, would be required to begin as soon as the Emergency Management Plan and Business Continuity Plan are approved.” Does this mean implementation and management of the plans may be awarded to another consultant, or to the original consultant under a new contract? 
It is possible the CNB may self-perform or hire existing consultant or hire a new consultant or company.   It  all depends upon the plan result and CNB will make that determination after the plan has been presented.
4. Under Locations section in the RFP, it states, “The primary focus for the Consultant will be on all locations within the geographic boundaries of Oklahoma and within the Cherokee Nation. Once the Emergency Management and Business Continuity Plans are completed, other locations shall be addressed.”
a. Do the CNB properties have their own EM and business continuity plans that need to be integrated into the overall plans for corporate headquarters? 
See answer above. 

b.  Are the “other locations” to be addressed as part of this RFP, or as a separate/amended contract?

May be added to this contract.  Some are home offices, some are located on military bases, some might not be applicable.  

c. “Other locations” will be throughout the Continental USA and overseas. We will need the specifics of these locations if they are to be included in the initial submittal, as travel and other costs may be high. 

Quoting for these locations will not be needed for this RFP.

d. For the "other locations," will submittals which propose other arrangements to offset travel expenses be considered or encouraged (i.e., video conferencing,  teleconferences, etc.)? 
Again, not to be addressed with this RFP.

e. Is CNB expecting the plans to be specific for each location/facility, or general in nature so the procedures apply to all hazards regardless of location? 

CNB expects to rely upon the expertise of the consultant they hire.  If specifics are needed for one facility, but generalities will suffice for others, CNB would expect consultant to provide both.

1) Is the scope of the effort strictly for the LLC and not the nation?  For example, when you say “response” do they mean first responder response too? 

The scope is for Cherokee Nation Businesses, LLC (CNB).  CNB is owned by the tribe, but is operated independently with a board of directors oversight.  CNB does expect the consultant and the plan to coordinate where appropriate with tribal, municipal, state and federal officials.

2) Are there any plans currently in place for either EM or BC?  If so, can they (or will) they be shared? 

Possibly.  CNB is an umbrella company with over 20 subsidiaries.  Some of these subsidiaries are paper companies with no assets or human resources, while others have been in business for 40 years with a significant, tangible presence.  Some of these companies may have existing plans, some don’t.  CNB expects the consultant to identify any existing plans and combine with plans the consultant generates for all companies.  
3) Purpose b. ii & iii. f. states “continual update”.  How do they envision that? Hourly, regularly, for how long, duration of the contract? 
CNB’s environment continually changes.  Some companies win government contracts and thus must expand offices or create new ones for the duration of that contract.  Other companies obtain assets such as buildings for expansion.  CNB has also purchased at least 3 companies within the last 5 years.  We do not see an end to such activity and thus “Continual update” means changing the created plan to reflect such changes. 
4) Are there any standards/guidelines that CNB wants/needs to follow for either the EM or BC (ie CPG, NFPA, or ISO)?  
CNB will rely upon the consultant to identify such standards.  CNB will cooperate in any way by providing what we know, but the obligation will be on the consultant to provide/identify.
5) Are there any regulatory requirements that either an EM/BC need to meet? 

Same as answered above. 
6) For the BC  - Are you seeking an overarching corporate plan only?  Or do you want BC plans for each “industry” (ie. Casino, golf course, etc) that roll into a corporate plan? Or do they want BC plans at each location, that then roll up to a corporate plan? 
CNB would like both, where needed.  Some companies may only need to be addressed with general plans, while others may require specifics.  CNB will rely upon the consultant to create and integrate both. 
7) Can you provide an organizational chart? 
 One is not available at this time.  
8) Does the Cherokee Nation have a Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan and/or Hazard Mitigation Plan that identifies the CNB as a stakeholder/participant? 
Unknown, but I doubt it.

9) Is the CNB responsible for emergency response to/within their owned assets (police, fire, ems, emergency management), or are these roles coordinated with tribal/local public safety services?
 Both, we have security and safety in some locations, but not all.  We expect coordination with all applicable public and tribal officials. 

10) Regarding the fire hazard listed in the RFP, are you referring to wildfire or structure fire as a leading threat to your assets?  
The answer could likely be both, depending upon the facility.

11) Are all the business considered subsidiaries of CNB? 
Yes
12) Do we assume that CNB has authority to activate resources and commit funding on behalf of all the various businesses? 
Yes
13) Do we assume that any command and/or emergency coordination staff  will be led by CNB staff, with support from individual business representatives? 
Some locations may not have a CNB presence.
14) Will CNB have authority to re-assign limited resources and personnel between the various businesses during a business disruption event?  
Possibly, will need clear explanation and justification.

1.   Are there any current business continuity plans and/or emergency response plans in use that could be used from either the business unit level or the enterprise level?  
There may be.  CNB is an umbrella company that has around 30 subsidiaries. Some of these businesses are paper companies only and others have been in business for over 40 years with assets and human resources.  Some may have plans while others will not.  CNB expects the consultant to assist in coordinating plans both at the sub level and at the CNB level.  Duplication or utilization of existing plans for sister companies would be at the recommendation of the consultant.  

2.  When was the last risk evaluation / business impact analysis performed for CNB’s enterprise / administrative operations?   Is there a copy available to approved bidders for review?  
I don’t know that there has been.  CNB is an umbrella company that has experienced incredible growth over the last 5 years through acquisitions and increased business.  Any information that may exist will likely only be provided to the winning bid.

3.  To make sure I understand your strategic objective … CNB is looking to review, build and maintain a Business Continuity & Emergency Management Plan for CNB’s administrative & command/control capabilities         enterprise wide, NOT a specific plan for each individual business unit CNB owns & operates.  ( One big plan vs. 30 +- smaller plans )  I believe CNB would like plans for CNB as well as for the individual businesses.  I expect the CNB plan would take precedence.  

4.  Each individual company’s operations and the effect of their loss on the whole will be taken in to account during the risk evaluation / business impact analysis phases of the business continuity plan process for your       enterprise wide administrative & command/control plan, it just takes less time (money) to build one large, all-hazards plan for the enterprise than 30 +- smaller plans, one for each business unit. ( although each             individual company’s operations should be reviewed/updated in the future ) 
I believe CNB would only want plans for individual businesses if needed and justifiable.  

5.  Can accommodations be provided by CNB or one of its affiliates for lodging while on site in Oklahoma to help hold down project costs? 
Consultants are welcome to stay at our facilities.  Arrangements and costs would be discussed at the time plans are made.
1. Can you provide me a reason for the extension?  

Typically we don’t extend unless unforeseen circumstances have arisen that would prevent a fair procurement process.
